
1

From: Gaetani, Luke <Luke.Gaetani@dpac.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 22 November 2023 12:53 PM
To: Helmich, Justin
Cc: Ellis, Minister (DPaC)
Subject: Referral Request - Response to RTI Request- Dean Winter MP
Attachments: 16.11.2023 - Letter to Dean Winter MP.pdf; RTI Information.zip

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Mr Helmich 

I send for your aƩenƟon the aƩached documents related to a Request to InformaƟon from Mr Dean Winter MP 
pertaining to worker compensaƟon cover of employees, both volunteer and paid of registered and licenced Harness 
trainers in Tasmania. 

Could I please refer the maƩers in the aƩached files relaƟng to workers compensaƟon to you as the Director of 
Racing of the Office of Racing Integrity and ask that you review the maƩer of workers compensaƟon insurance of 
employees of registered and licenced Harness Trainers in Tasmania. 

If deemed appropriate, consider referral to WorkSafe to ensure compliance with the Workers RehabilitaƟon and 
CompensaƟon Act 1988 to ensure all relevant legislaƟon is being adhered to. 

Kind regards 

Luke Gaetani 
Senior Adviser- Racing 

Office of the Hon Felix Ellis MP 
Minister for Police, Fire and Emergency Management 
Minister for Resources 
Minister for Skills, Training and Workforce Growth 
Minister for Racing 
Leader of the House 

Level 5, 4 Salamance Place, Hobart TAS 7000 
Phone: (03) 6165 7770/
e-mail: luke.gaetani@dpac.tas.gov.au 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER 
The information in this transmission may be confidential and/or protected by legal professional privilege, and is intended only for the person or persons to 
whom it is addressed. If you are not such a person, you are warned that any disclosure, copying or dissemination of the information is unauthorised. If you 
have received the transmission in error, please immediately contact this office by telephone, fax or email, to inform us of the error and to enable 
arrangements to be made for the destruction of the transmission, or its return at our cost. No liability is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information 
contained in this transmission.
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From: Helmich, Justin
Sent: Thursday, 23 November 2023 5:03 PM
To: Gaetani, Luke
Subject: RE: Referral Request - Response to RTI Request- Dean Winter MP

Dear Luke 
 
Thank you for your email. I have reviewed the informaƟon in detail and I have spoken with the ExecuƟve Director of 
Worksafe Tasmania, Ms Robyn Pearce. I will write a detailed referral to Ms Pearce in coming days in relaƟon to the 
assessment of this issue. 
 
I will forward a copy of the correspondence once I have sent it. 
 
Regards 
 

 

Justin Helmich | General Manager 

Director of Racing 

Office of Racing Integrity 

Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania 

13 Saint Johns Avenue NEW TOWN  TAS  7008 

M:   

E: justin.helmich@racingintegrity.tas.gov.au 

W: www.nre.tas.gov.au 

 

 
 

From: Gaetani, Luke <Luke.Gaetani@dpac.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 22 November 2023 12:53 PM 
To: Helmich, Justin <Justin.Helmich@racingintegrity.tas.gov.au> 
Cc: Ellis, Minister (DPaC) <Minister.Ellis@dpac.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: Referral Request ‐ Response to RTI Request‐ Dean Winter MP 
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From: Jacobi, Jason
Sent: Tuesday, 28 November 2023 11:52 AM
To: Deayton, Elaina (DPaC); Wilson, Deidre
Cc: Ministerials, Ellis; Ellis, Minister (DPaC); Gaetani, Luke; Helmich, Justin
Subject: RE: IMIN23/34496 : NVITATION - Hon Ruth Forrest MLC - Legislative Council GAA short inquiry 

into workers compensation insurance within the racing industry - 5 December 2023

Thanks Elaina, 
As discussed I will make myself available. 
If you could please organise a pre-brief with Tasracing that would be great. 
 
J 
 
 

 

Jason Jacobi | Secretary 
Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania 
134 Macquarie Street  HOBART  TAS  7000 
E: jason.jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au 
Ph: 03 6165 3057 
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au 

 

 
 
Please note: I often work irregular hours and if you receive an email from me outside of normal hours please do not 
feel obliged to respond until the start of your next normal workday.  
 
From: Deayton, Elaina <Elaina.Deayton@dpac.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 11:27 AM 
To: Jacobi, Jason <Jason.Jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au>; Wilson, Deidre <Deidre.Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Cc: Ministerials, Ellis <Ellis.Ministerials@nre.tas.gov.au>; Ellis, Minister (DPaC) <Minister.Ellis@dpac.tas.gov.au>; 
Gaetani, Luke <Luke.Gaetani@dpac.tas.gov.au>; Helmich, Justin <Justin.Helmich@racingintegrity.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: IMIN23/34496 : NVITATION - Hon Ruth Forrest MLC - Legislative Council GAA short inquiry into workers 
compensation insurance within the racing industry - 5 December 2023 
 
Hi Jason, please see attached in relation to the Legislative Council Short Inquiry Process into Workers Compensation 
Insurance within the Racing Industry. 
 
Can you and Justin please be available at this time to attend the Inquiry? 
 
The Minister can only attend between 12.15pm and 1pm as he has Privileges and Conduct Committee in the 
morning and the Leg Co Inquiry into TasTAFE in the afternoon. 
 
We will also request that Worksafe attend through Minister Ogilvie’s Office. 
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Many thanks 
 
Elaina 
 
From: Gaetani, Luke <Luke.Gaetani@dpac.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 28 November 2023 9:50 AM 
To: Deayton, Elaina <Elaina.Deayton@dpac.tas.gov.au> 
Cc: Ellis, Minister <Minister.Ellis@dpac.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: IMIN23/34496 : NVITATION - Hon Ruth Forrest MLC - Legislative Council GAA short inquiry into workers 
compensation insurance within the racing industry - 5 December 2023 
 
Hi ED 

Please see attached email from Jenny Mannering requesting attendance at a Legislative Council GAA short inquiry 
into workers compensation insurance within the racing industry on 5 December 2023. 

Thanks, LG 

 ------< Content Manager Record Information >------  

Record Number: MIN23/34496  
Title: RACING - INVITATION - Hon Ruth Forrest MLC - Legislative Council GAA short inquiry into workers 
compensation insurance within the racing industry - 5 December 2023 

 

 ------< Content Manager Record Information >------  

Record Number: MIN23/34496/1  
Title: COVER EMAIL - Jenny Mannering - Legislative Council GAA short inquiry into workers compensation insurance 
within the racing industry 

 
 

 
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
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 myDAS No: 
  

 

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

GOVERNMENT ADMINISTATION COMMITTEE ‘A’ 

SHORT INQUIRY – TASRACING – WORKERS COMPENSATION 
  
 
REGULATOR OF WORKERS REHABILITATION AND  
COMPENSATION ACT 1988 
  
(Date: 30 November 2023) 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
 

The Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 1988 (WRCA) is 
assigned to the Minister for Workplace Safety and Consumer 
Affairs in subject to the oversight of the Department of Justice, 
pursuant to the Administrative Arrangements Order (S.R 2023, No 
57). 

Worksafe Tasmania is responsible for regulating the Act, and for 
ensuring compliance, including investigating alleged breaches of the 
Act. 

The Office of Racing Integrity has no role in regulating the WRCA, 
however in instances where allegations of non-compliance are 
uncovered, such matters may be actively referred to Worksafe 
Tasmania.  

Determining workers compensation insurance needs can be 
complex. The Office of Racing Integrity does not provide advice in 
relation to such matters. Where applicable, participants are advised 
to seek independent professional advice. 
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Q: Who is responsible for regulating compliance with the Workers 
Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 1988 

Section 97 of the WRCA places an obligation on an employer to 
maintain in force an applicable policy of insurance in respect to 
liabilities to pay compensation under the Act. 

An employer who fails to comply is guilty of an offence and is subject 
to penalty. Compliance with this Act is regulated by Worksafe 
Tasmania.  

Neither the Office of Racing Integrity, Tasracing nor the Director of 
Racing have any powers under the WRCA to undertake compliance 
activities. 

In relation to Mr Yole, the Office of Racing Integrity is conducting an 
assessment to determine if Mr Yole remains a fit and proper person 
pursuant to Australian Harness Racing Rule 90. The alleged non-
compliance with s97 of WRCA are the trigger for that action. 

 

Q: Are there any Rules of Racing that require trainers to have 
insurance? 

THOROUGHBRED CODE 

Rule 15.19 of the Tasmanian Thoroughbred Local Rules, set by 
Tasracing, requires that: 

“Every trainer shall ensure that he maintains Worker’s Compensation Insurance to 
cover any of his employees under the Worker’s Compensation Act in force at that 
time and no person shall have any claim against Tasracing, Stewards or Club in 
respect of any loss or damage arising out of any race meeting or event.” 

Irrespective of the incorrect legislative reference (Worker’s 
Compensation Act rather than Workers Rehabilitation and 
Compensation Act 1998), it is clear that the intent of the rule is to 
ensure that thoroughbred code trainers have insurance to acquit any 
responsibility under section 97 of the WRCA. 

  

ASSESSED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT TASMANIA UNDER THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009 

Part B - 6

RTI - 
DL -

 R
ELE

ASE -N
RE



IF PUSHED ON REGULATORY ACTIVITY ON THOROUGHBRED LOCAL 
RULE 15.19 

In 2021/22, the Office of Racing Integrity undertook a compliance 
assessment in respect of compliance with Local Rule 15.19 and the 
Licensing Requirements. 

The compliance assessment revealed that there was a high 
percentage of trainers who had a level of insurance coverage. 

In the same year, Tasracing provided significant financial assistance to 
Thoroughbred trainers, reimbursing the cost of insurance policies 
taken out by trainers. 

A similar arrangement was put in place by Tasracing in 2022/23. 

A full audit of compliance in the thoroughbred code is scheduled for 
the 2023/24 financial year. 

HARNESS CODE 

There are no references within the rules in relation to the 
requirement to acquit the responsibility under 97 of the WRCA. 

As there is no relevant rule, no regulatory action is undertaken by 
the stewards in regards to this issue. 

GREYHOUND CODE 

There are no references within the rules in relation to the 
requirement to acquit the responsibility under 97 of the WRCA. 

As there is no relevant rule, not regulatory action is undertaken by 
the stewards in regards to this issue. 

Q: What licensing provisions are in place to force trainers to comply 
with section 97 of the WRCA? 

The Director of Racing has a statutory responsibility to approve 
registrations for racing animals and grant licenses for people to 
conduct activities under the Rules of Racing pursuant to the Racing 
Regulation Act 2004 (RRA) section 6(2) e & f. 
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Tasracing is responsible for setting licence and registration standards 
and criteria, having regard to the recommendations of the Director 
of Racing (pursuant to section 11(1)(l) of the RRA). 

There are requirements included with the thoroughbred and harness 
code licensing requirements which read: 

THOROUGHBRED CODE 

(that participants) ‘Acknowledged that they will obtain a Workers Compensation Insurance 
policy for all paid and voluntary workers if required to do so under State Law. 

HARNESS CODE 

(that participants) ‘Acknowledge that a current Workers Compensation Policy will be maintained 
for paid and voluntary workers if required under State Legislation.’ 

IF PUSHED: 

There is a ‘tick box’ acknowledgement included in the Thoroughbred 
licence application form (including online). There is no equivalent 
‘tick box’ on harness application forms. The reason for the 
discrepancy is not fully clear, but it dates back to 2019 when the 
acknowledgement was introduced in the harness code.

Q: What is the process for creation of licensing conditions? 

Each year in February/March, the Office of Racing Integrity provides 
proposed licensing requirements, (containing relevant standards and 
criteria) to Tasracing to consider and if appropriate submit for 
consultation with industry. Following consultation, licensing 
requirements and standards are approved in accordance with section 
11 of the RRA by Tasracing. 

Documents are presented to the Tasracing Harness Industry Forum 
by Tasracing Harness Code Lead – usually at the March meeting.  

Feedback is considered and requirements are then 
endorsed/approved by the Racing Rules & Policies Committee of 
Tasracing. 

Approved conditions are then provided to ORI to administer the 
licensing and registration function across all three codes of racing in 
pursuant to section 6(2)(e)& (f) of the RRA. 
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This licensing and registration function is an activity undertaken by 
ORI all year round, however the main licensing period occurs in July-
September quarter. 

Q: What action has the Office of Racing Integrity taken in relation to 
Ben Yole Racing admitting non-compliance with the WRCA? 

On 21 November 2023, I wrote to Tasracing CEO, Andrew Jenkins 
to raise concerns with (amongst other matters) the fact there is a 
discrepancy between the rules in place regarding workers 
compensation in relation to thoroughbred participants, compared 
with the other two codes. I suggested that a review be conducted to 
determine appropriate and consistent rule settings across the 
industry. 

On 23 November 2023, I spoke with Ms Robyn Pearce, (Executive 
Director, Worksafe Tasmania) and briefly discussed concerns in 
relation to the issue regarding Ben Yole Racing, but also a broader 
industry issue in respect of compliance with section 97 of the 
WRCA. I followed this conversation up on 29 November 2023 with 
a letter, formally outlining my concerns. 

On 21 November 2023, I wrote to Mr Yole and requested that he 
provide me with a copy of any insurance coverage certificate that he 
had in relation to his compliance with section 97 of WRCA.  

I had several follow up phone calls with Mr Yole and his 
representatives in relation to the request. 

On 23 November 2023, Mr Yole emailed me and advised that BYR 
did not have insurance but indicated that he had organised a labour 
hire arrangement to ensure that his employees were appropriately 
covered. 

On 23 November 2023, I wrote again to Mr Yole to seek written 
confirmation of the labour hire arrangement identified in his 
correspondence, including evidence of a contract. 
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I am aware that Tasracing sought additional information prior to 
allowing Mr Yole access to the Elwick Race Course on 24 November 
2023.  

IF PUSHED ON APPROPRIATENESS OF TASRACING ACTION 

It is not clear to me the mechanism that Tasracing proposed to use 
to exclude Mr Yole from racetracks, should this have been required, 
however it is my expectation that such an action would occur in 
accordance the warning off provisions contained within section 53 of 
the Racing Regulation Act 2004. These provisions have built in appeal 
provisions to the TRAB. 

 

Q: Why haven’t you charged Ben Yole Racing with failing to have 
suitable coverage to acquit section 97 of the WRCA? 

There is no rule relevant to this in the harness code. 

Q: What haven’t you removed Mr Yole’s licence to prevent this 
from occurring again? 

As a result of the inquiries conducted on 21 November 2023 with 
Mr Yole, he has since adjusted the structure of his business, and his 
workers are covered for section 97 WRCA liability.  

Q: Why hasn’t Mr Yole been stood down in the interim? 

It is important that people receive procedural fairness. I have 
determined that it is appropriate to provide Mr Yole the time to 
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respond as there are many aspects of this issue that have yet to be 
fully investigated and tested.  

I have an important responsibility as a regulator to ensure that when 
I take action, I have all of the information, and that the respondent 
has had an opportunity to provide a considered response to any 
allegations. 

It is also important to understand that Mr Yole is an appropriately 
licensed trainer at this point in time. He operates a significant 
business activity each week. For me to stand down Mr Yole in the 
interim would in my view be reckless, considering that a stand down 
would in itself equate to a significant financial penalty. 

I like to know that when I am making a significant decision, that there 
is sufficient robustness to that decision. 

I am well aware that it is the view of many within the industry that 
Mr Yole should have been suspended in relation to this issue. I am 
yet to form a view on that, and accordingly, Mr Yole remains 
licensed. 

 

Q: Where do you believe that the issue lies in relation to this issue? 

I believe that it is appropriate to allow the regulator, Worksafe 
Tasmania to do their work in relation to compliance with section 97 
of the WRCA. 

I believe that there is more work that the racing industry (ORI, 
Tasracing, clubs and participants) needs to do in ensuring that the 
business structures that are in place in the racing industry meet 
legislation and governance requirement, and community 
expectations. 

In saying that, I see the role is most appropriately in the awareness / 
education / assistance space. I believe that the recently announced 
assistance program, where trainers receive access to specialist, 
independent advice will be beneficial in ensuring that trainers have 
the appropriate level of cover. 
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Currently, harness racing participants pay insurance premiums for 
personal accident and public liability. These are paid as a part of their 
licence renewal. Tasracing manage the insurance policy and dictate 
the amount that participants must contribute, and the Office of 
Racing Integrity collects the money as a part of the licensing process. 
The monies are then remitted to Tasracing by the ORI. Anecdotally, 
it seems that at least some participants, held the view (albeit 
incorrect) that these policies acquitted the requirements of section 
97 of the WRCA. 

I believe that clearer information to participants may prevent future 
non-compliance. 

 

Q: What is ORI doing about this issue right now? 

The stewards are actively gathering information from trainers in 
respect of who has staff working for them at race meetings and on 
inspections of stables/kennels. 

This information will be provided as appropriate to Worksafe 
Tasmania where non-compliance is suspected. 

The Director of Racing will determine the matter in relation to Mr 
Yole’s fitness and propriety to hold a trainers licence after he has had 
the opportunity to make submissions. 

 

 

 

Cleared by: Justin Helmich 
 Director of Racing 
 NRE Tas 
 Phone:  
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From: Helmich, Justin
Sent: Monday, 4 December 2023 3:54 PM
To: Gaetani, Luke
Subject: Emailing: 3. BRIEF - WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE REGULATION.JJ.JH.docx
Attachments: 3. BRIEF - WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE REGULATION.JJ.JH.docx

Your message is ready to be sent with the following file or link a achments: 

3. BRIEF - WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE REGULATION.JJ.JH.docx

Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending or receiving certain types of file 
a achments.  Check your e-mail security se ngs to determine how a achments are handled. 
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
compliance with section 97 of WRCA is the trigger for that action. 

Q: Are there any Rules of Racing that require trainers to have 
insurance? 

THOROUGHBRED CODE 

In the Thoroughbred Code Rule 15.19 of the Tasmanian 
Thoroughbred Local Rules, set by Tasracing, requires that: 

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

The intent of the rule is to ensure that thoroughbred code trainers 
have insurance to acquit any responsibility under section 97 of the 
WRCA and the stewards can deal with instances of non-compliance. 
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

There are no references within the Australian Harness Racing Rules 
or local policies in relation to the requirement to acquit the 
responsibility under section 97 of the WRCA. 

As there is no relevant rule, no regulatory action is undertaken by 
the stewards in regard to this issue. 

GREYHOUND CODE  

There are no references within the Greyhounds Australasia Rules or 
the Tasmanian Greyhound Rules of Racing in relation to the 
requirement to acquit the responsibility under section 97 of the 
WRCA. 

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
Regulation Act 2004 section 6(2) e & f. 

Tasracing is responsible for setting licence and registration standards 
and criteria, having regard to the recommendations of the Director 
of Racing (pursuant to section 11(1)(l) of the Racing Regulation Act 
2004). 

There are requirements included with the thoroughbred and harness 
code licensing requirements which read: 

THOROUGHBRED CODE 

(that participants have) ‘Acknowledged that they will obtain a Workers Compensation Insurance 
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

ONLY IF PUSHED: 

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
consultation with industry at the Tasracing Harness Industry Forum.  

Following consultation, licensing requirements and standards are 
approved by the Tasracing Racing Rules & Policies Committee 
pursuant to section 11 of the Racing Regulation Act 2004. 
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Approved conditions are then provided to ORI to administer the 
licensing and registration function across all three codes of racing in 
pursuant to section 6(2)(e)& (f) of the RRA. 

The licensing and registration function is an activity undertaken by 
ORI year-round, however the main licensing period occurs in July-
September quarter. 

Q: What action has the Office of Racing Integrity taken in relation to 
Ben Yole Racing admitting non-compliance with the WRCA? 

On 21 November 2023, the Director of Racing wrote to Tasracing 
CEO, Andrew Jenkins to raise concern with a discrepancy between 
the rules in place regarding workers compensation in relation to 
thoroughbred participants, compared with the other two codes. The 
Director of Racing suggested that a review be conducted to 
determine appropriate and consistent rule settings across the 
industry. 

On 21 November 2023, the Director of Racing wrote to Mr Yole 
and requested that he provide a copy of any insurance coverage 
certificate that he had in relation to his compliance with section 97 
of WRCA.  

On 23 November 2023, the Director of Racing spoke with Ms 
Robyn Pearce, (Executive Director, Worksafe Tasmania) and briefly 
discussed concerns in relation to the issue regarding Ben Yole 
Racing, but also a broader industry issue in respect of compliance 
with section 97 of the WRCA. This conversation was formalised on 
29 November 2023 with a letter outlining concerns. 

On 23 November 2023, Mr Yole responded to the Director of 
Racing and advised that BYR did not have insurance but indicated 
that he had organised a labour hire arrangement to ensure that his 
employees were appropriately covered. 

On 23 November 2023, the Director of Racing again wrote to Mr 
Yole to seek written confirmation of the labour hire arrangement 
identified in his correspondence, including evidence of a contract. 
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On 1 December 2023, the Director of Racing wrote to Mr Yole and 
asked him to show cause as to why his licence should not be 
cancelled, with reference to the fit and proper person provisions of 
his harness trainer’s licence. He was given 14 days to respond. 

ACTION BY TASRACING 

On 24 November 2023, Tasracing sought additional information 
prior from Mr Yole prior to allowing access to the Elwick Race 
Course.  

IF PUSHED ON APPROPRIATENESS OF TASRACING ACTION 

It is not clear to the mechanism that Tasracing proposed to use to 
exclude Mr Yole from racetracks, should this have been required, 
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

Q: Why hasn’t ORI charged Ben Yole Racing with failing to have 
suitable coverage to acquit section 97 of the WRCA? 

There is no rule relevant to this in the harness code. 

Q: What hasn’t Mr Yole’s licence been removed to prevent this from 
occurring again? 

I am advised that as of 24 November 2023, Mr Yole has adjusted the 
structure of his business, and his workers are covered for section 97 
WRCA liability.  
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Q: Why hasn’t Mr Yole been stood down in the interim? 

It is important that people receive procedural fairness. I am advised 
that the Director of Racing has determined that it is appropriate to 
provide Mr Yole the time to respond as there are many aspects of 
this issue that have yet to be fully investigated and tested.  

The Director of Racing has an important responsibility as a regulator 
to ensure that when action is taken, all of the facts are identified, and 
that the respondent has had an opportunity to provide a considered 
response to any allegations. 

It is also important to understand that Mr Yole is an appropriately 
licensed trainer currently. He operates a significant business activity 
each week.  

I am advised that the Director of Racing has determined that to 
stand down Mr Yole in the interim is not appropriate, considering 
that a stand down would in itself equate to a significant financial 
penalty. 

 

Q: What should happen next? 

It is appropriate to allow the regulator, Worksafe Tasmania to do 
their work in relation to compliance with section 97 of the WRCA. 

There is more work that the racing industry (ORI, Tasracing, clubs 
and participants) needs to do in ensuring that the business structures 
that are in place in the racing industry meet legislation and 
governance requirement, and community expectations. 

I believe that the recently announced assistance program, where 
trainers receive access to specialist, independent advice will be 
beneficial in ensuring that trainers have the appropriate level of 
cover. 
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Currently, harness racing participants pay insurance premiums for 
personal accident and public liability. These are paid as a part of their 
licence renewal.  

Tasracing manage the insurance policy and dictate the amount that 
participants must contribute, and the Office of Racing Integrity 
collects the money as a part of the licensing process. The monies are 
then remitted to Tasracing by the ORI.  

Anecdotally, it seems that at least some participants, held the view 
(albeit incorrect) that these policies acquitted the requirements of 
section 97 of the WRCA. 

It is important that all participants are clear on what their 
responsibilities are and that receive the correct advice to prevent 
future non-compliance. 

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

In instances where non-compliance is suspected, this information 
may be provided to Worksafe Tasmania to aid a review of the 
circumstances.  

The Director of Racing will determine the matter in relation to Mr 
Yole’s fitness and propriety to hold a trainer’s licence after he has 
had the opportunity to make submissions. 

Q: Tasracing has indicated that it is of the view that ORI can deal 
with these matters under the Licensing process? 

The Licensing process does have this capacity, it is designed to 
screen participants to determine if they are fit and proper persons to 
hold a licence and there is the option of revisiting a participant’s 
fitness and propriety in instances where concerns are raised. An 
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example of this occurred this year, when a thoroughbred participants 
licence was cancelled. 

However, undertaking action through this process can be inefficient, 
and the provision of a specific rule in the harness and greyhound 
rules would mean that stewards could take immediate action in lines 
with the rules and through referral to Worksafe Tasmania. 

Cleared by: Justin Helmich 
Director of Racing 
NRE Tas
Phone:  
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